
1 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

AGENDA 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Monday, January 07, 2019 - 6:00 PM 
 

Call to Order 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Mayor Allen L. Brown 

Oath of Office for Board of Directors:  Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director 

Travis Odom and Ward 5 Director Barbara S. Miner. 

ROLL CALL 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  

1. Election of Assistant Mayor and Oath of Office 

2. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Board of Directors’ boards, commissions 

and committees. (CCD) 

PRESENTATION(S) 

3. City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards 

CONSENT 

4. Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting December 17, 2018. (CCD) 

REGULAR 

5. Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private 

club application for the Arrow Bar. (Tony Couch) (CCD) 

The applicant requests an emergency clause.  An emergency clause requires a separate 

and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by 

the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Tuesday, January 22, 2019 

ADJOURN 

2019 City Calendar 

4th Annual MLK Day Parade - Monday, January 21, 2019 

1



2 

Run the Line Half Marathon - Sunday, February 17, 2019 

7th Annual Mardi Gras Parade - Saturday, March 2, 2019 

Warriors for Christ Crusade - Friday & Saturday, March 8-9, 2019 

9th Annual RailFest - Saturday, May 11, 2019 

Sparks in the Park - Saturday, June 29, 2019 

  

  

2



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Election of Assistant Mayor and Oath of Office 

AGENDA DATE: 01/07/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Election of Assistant Mayor and Oath of Office 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Election of Assistant Mayor and Oath of Office 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Election of Assistant Mayor and Oath of Office 

EXHIBITS: N/A 

 

3



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Board of Directors’ 

boards, commissions and committees. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 01/07/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Make Board appointments 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed 

SUMMARY: Appointments to the Board of Directors’ boards, commissions and 

committees. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and Staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and current list 

 

 

Summary of Directors’ Boards, Committees, and Commissions 

Advertising and Promotion Commission – promotes tourism and hospitality industry and authorizes use 

of revenues derived from the tax for the purpose of advertising and promoting the city and its environs. 

 

Council of Governments – promotes intergovernmental cooperation and strengthening local units of 

government. 

 

Economic Development Board – promotes and pursues economic development in the city.  Mayor acts 

as Chairman. 

 

4



Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Board – advises regarding emergency medical services. 

 

Employees Retirement System Committee – advisory committee relating to the retirement plan of the 

city and review the actuarial study for the benefit of the employees. 

 

Intergovernmental Advisory Committee (IAC) – advisory committee relating to the Bi-State Justice 

Building. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Policy Committee – adopts policies relating to the 

metropolitan transportation planning process, reviews and adopts a long-range transportation plan and  

promote its implementation. 

 

Public Utilities Committee – advisory committee relating to the administration and operation of 

Texarkana Water Utilities Department. 

 

Solid Waste Committee – advisory committee relating to solid waste contracts. 

 

Texarkana Urban Transit District (TUTD) Board – T-Line Bus System. 

 

5



 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S  

BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
 

 

 

A&P Commission (2)  Intergovernmental Advisory 

Committee (2) 

   

1. Director Tim Johnson  1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell 

2. Director Linda Teeters  2. Director Travis Odom 

   

   

Council of Governments Board (1)  Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Policy Committee (2) 

   

1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell  1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell 

  2. Assistant Mayor Barbara Miner 

   

Economic Development Committee (5)  Public Utilities Committee (3) 

1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell  1. Director Laney Harris 

2. Director Tim Johnson  2. Assistant Mayor Barbara Miner 

3. Assistant Mayor Miner  3. Director Travis Odom 

4. Director Travis Odom   

5. Director Linda Teeters   

   

   

Emergency Medical Systems Committee 

(3) 

 Solid Waste Management Committee 

(3) 

1. Assistant Mayor Miner  1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell 

2. Director Travis Odom  2. Assistant Mayor Barbara Miner 

3. Director Terri Peavy  3.Director Linda Teeters 

   

   

Employees Retirement System 

Committee (2) 

 Texarkana Urban Transit District 

Board (3) 

1. Director Terri Peavy  1. Mayor Ruth Penney Bell 

2. Director Linda Teeters  2. Director Laney Harris 

  3. Director Terri Peavy 

 

6



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on the Board Committees listed below; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to make appointments to fill the vacant 

positions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following individuals are hereby appointed to the Board 

Committees listed below: 

  

A&P Commission (2) 

 

 Intergovernmental Advisory  

Committee (2) 

1.  1. 

2.  2. 

   

Council of Governments Board (1)  Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Policy Committee (2) 

1.  1. 

  2. 

   

Economic Development Committee (5)  Public Utilities Committee (3) 

1.  1. 

2.  2. 

3.  3. 

4.   

5.   

   

Emergency Medical Systems  

Committee (3) 

 Solid Waste Management Committee (3) 

1.  1. 

2.  2. 

3.  3. 

   

Employees Retirement System 

Committee (2) 

 Texarkana Urban Transit District  

Board (3) 

1.  1. 

2.  2. 

  3. 

7



PASSED AND APPROVED this 7
th

 day of January, 2019. 

  

  
_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

  

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

8



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards 

AGENDA DATE: 1/7/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Employee Service Awards 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Not Applicable 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Not Applicable 

SUMMARY: Employee Service Awards 

FUNDING SOURCE: Not Applicable 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Not Applicable 

EXHIBITS: Employee Service Awards List 

 

9



 

 

 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards 
 

NAME Department Years of Service 

Cynthia Tyree TWU 15 

Donald Crittenden TWU 30 

   

 

10



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting December 17, 2018. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 01/7/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed. 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

FUNDING SOURCE: Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Clerk recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting Minutes 

 

11



1 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

MINUTES 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Monday, December 17, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
 

Mayor Ruth Penney Bell called the meeting to order. 

PRESENT: Mayor Ruth Penney Bell, Ward 1 Director Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director 

Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Tim Johnson, Ward 4 Director Travis Odom, Ward 5 

Assistant Mayor Barbara S. Miner and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy. 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, and 

City Clerk Heather Soyars. 

ABSENT: Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Mayor Bell. 

*Director Harris arrived at 6:04 PM. 

Mayor Bell welcomed former Texarkana, Arkansas Mayor Wayne Smith and Texas-side 

Mayor Bob Bruggeman. She said in the past week she attended the Leadership Texarkana 

breakfast and the Employee Christmas luncheon, where City Clerk Heather Soyars won the 

annual chili cook off.  Mayor Bell said she, City Manager Haskin and Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards were interviewed by Business Vision, an online magazine with over 650,000 

subscribers. 

Mayor Bell asked the Board if they had any comments.  

Director Harris asked if and when the City would purchase a street sweeper. 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of Minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting December 4, 2018. (CCD) 

2. Resolution No. 2018-45 authorizes the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

Millwood Water Treatment Plant - Settling Basin Interior Repairs/Liner Project. (TWU) 

3. Resolution No. 2018-46 authorizes and directs the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director 

Teeters.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 

12



2 

REGULAR 

4. Ordinance No. 21-2018 grants the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private 

club application for Outlaws. (Jamie Reynolds) (CCD) 

Jamie Reynolds, 32 MC 502, said she currently owns a bar in Garland City and was 

transferring the beer permit to 6115 East 9
th

 Street and wanted to get the private club permit 

for this location.  She wanted a place for the middle age group of people to go and have a 

good time.   

Director Harris asked if the club were located past Rondo Road.  

Ms. Reynolds said yes.  

Director Teeters said the location was a bar before and there were several noise ordinance 

violations.   

 Ms. Reynolds said she told the neighbors the previous bar was not run properly, and she 

assured them she would run the bar in accordance with all the laws.     

City Manager Kenny Haskin said this had been approved by Public Works Department, 

Police Department and Fire Department.   

Motion to place the ordinance on its first reading in abbreviated form made by Mayor Bell,  

Seconded by Director Odom. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Assistant Mayor Miner, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Odom, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Miner. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Assistant Mayor Miner, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Odom. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, Assistant Mayor Miner, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to approve the ordinance made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director Johnson. 

Mayor Bell asked if any citizens had any questions or comments.   

Janice Reid, 31 Summit Circle, said she wanted to express her wishes about not having a 

club in her area.  She said there were previous clubs and it did not go very well.  Ms. Reid 

said she hoped the ordinance would not go through.      

Director Teeters asked if the Board would wait until the January meeting to decide on the 

ordinance and hear from other residents from the area.   

Ms. Reynolds said she lives in the area and there was no difference in what she was opening 

and the VFW down the street.   

13



3 

Director Harris asked what was stopping Ms. Reynolds from opening the club now with just 

beer and within the next 30 days get the liquor license. 

Ms. Reynolds said she could open now with just beer without the Board’s approval, but it 

would be easier for her to submit all the paperwork to the Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC) 

at once then at separate times.   

Director Peavy said she would like to slow down and wait until after the holidays that way 

other people from the area could come and voice their concerns to the Board.  

Director Johnson said Ms. Reynolds was asking for permission from the Board to go before 

the ABC to apply for the private club permit.   

City Manager Kenny Haskin said that was correct.   

City Attorney George Matteson said there was already a motion and a second to approve the 

ordinance or the Board could table the issue.      

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Johnson, Director Odom, Assistant 

Mayor Miner. 

Voting Nay: Director Harris, Director Peavy. 

The ordinance was approved 5-2. 

City Attorney George Matteson said the ordinance would go into effect within the next 30 

days without the emergency clause.   

Director Odom made a motion to approve the emergency clause. 

The motion died for lack of a second. 

5. Resolution No.2018-47 recognized Mayor Bell for her service to the City. (BOD) (This item 

added to the agenda at the request of Director Terri Peavy.) 

Mayor Bell recognized the staff, Board, Police Department, Fire Department, and citizens of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, as the best people to serve with.    

Wayne Smith, 5706 Clem Wood Trail, said it was an honor and a privilege to serve on the 

Board with Mayor Bell.  He said she would go down in history as not only the 1
st
 woman 

mayor but the best mayor of Texarkana, Arkansas.     

Texas-side Mayor Bob Bruggeman said it had been a joy and a privilege to serve alongside 

Mayor Bell the past few years.   Mr. Bruggeman presented Mayor Bell a bouquet of the 

“Yellow Rose of Texas.” 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Johnson, Seconded by Director Peavy. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Johnson, Director Odom, Assistant 

Mayor Miner, Director Peavy. 

Voting Present: Director Harris.  The motion carried 6-1. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Misty Stewart, 1122 Hazel Street, said while she was working as a bell ringer for the 

Salvation Army, she saw a liquor store giving out cups of ice.  She said she felt like the 

business was promoting drinking and driving and did not think it was the right thing to do.   

14



4 

Pastor Dr. Ellen Holmes wanted to say thank the entire Board for their service to Texarkana, 

Arkansas. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board did not enter Executive Session.  

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Johnson, Seconded by Director Teeters. 

Voting Aye: Mayor Bell, Director Teeters, Director Harris, Director Johnson, Director 

Odom, 

Assistant Mayor Miner, Director Peavy.  The motion carried 7-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:02 PM. 

APPROVAL of the minutes on the 7
th

 day of January, 2019. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

15



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application for the Arrow Bar. (Tony Couch) 

(CCD) 

The applicant requests an emergency clause.  An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: 01/07/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Private club license. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: An emergency clause is requested by the applicant Tony Couch.  The 

ordinance must be effective before submitting the application to the 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Administration. 

SUMMARY: Tony Couch is requesting prerequisite approval to continue the 

application process through the State.  He is moving the Arrow Bar from 

it’s current location at 112 E. 5
th

 Street to 110 E. 36
th

 Street. 

Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, all new private club applications must be 

submitted with an ordinance from the governing body of the county or 

municipality in which the private club wishes to be located, approving 

the application. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and Staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Letter from TAPD, and application. 

 

 

 

  

16



ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE TRANSFER 

OF ARKANSAS ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 

CONTROL PERMIT NO. 00162 FROM 112 E. 5TH 

STREET TO 110 E. 36TH STREET; FOR 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the amended provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in accordance 

therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to submittal of certain 

applications to the ABC or its Director relating to private clubs, request has been made that this Board of 

Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the transfer of ABC Permit No. 00162 (being the 

permit under which the establishment commonly known as the Arrow Bar (a.k.a. Cheers of Texarkana) 

operates at 112 E. 5
TH

 Street) to 110 E. 36
th
 Street, all as located in Texarkana, Arkansas;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that: 

Section 1.  The transfer of Arkansas Beverage Permit No 00162 from 112 E. 5
th
 Street to 110 E. 

36
th
 Street is approved. 

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of any 

business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state or federal 

law, rule or regulation, now or hereafter adopted. 

Section 3: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety 

(including, without limitation, the applying party’s stated need for approval of immediate transfer to 

expedite application to ABC to facilitate permit location transfer without cessation or disruption of 

business), and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is 

therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 7
th

 day of January, 2019. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

17



 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25


	Top
	1. Assistant Mayor and Oath
	01072019_asst mayor.docx

	2. Boards committees
	01072019_ccd_bod comm.docx
	2018_boards committees.pdf
	2019_BOD Committees.docx

	3. Employee Service Awards
	01072019_ccd_employee service awards.docx
	01072019_ccd_list_employee service awards.doc

	4. December 17 Minutes
	01072019_ccd_minutes.docx
	12172018_minutes.docx

	5. Arrow Bar
	01072019_ccd_private club couch.docx
	01072019_private club couch_app.pdf

	Bottom

